
 
 

Town Council 
Regular Meeting 

March 19, 2024, at 9:30 a.m. 
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD ELECTRONICALLY AND IN PERSON 
Please visit www.laurelpark.org for more information 

 
  
 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Public Comment 
4. Approval of the Agenda 
5. Consent Agenda 

A. February Monthly Report 
B. Minutes for the February 15, 2024 Work Session Meeting 
C. Minutes for the February 20, 2024 Regular Meeting 
D. Minutes for the February 20, 2024 Closed Session 
E. Minutes for the February 21, 2024 Budget Retreat Meeting 
F. Arbor Day Proclamation 

6. Old Business  
A. ABC Merger Discussion 
B. Centennial Committee Update 

7. New Business 
A. Payroll Software Contract 
B. Laurel Park Highway Survey Results 

8. Town Manager’s Report 
9. Department Head Reports 

A. Public Works 
B. Fire Department 
C. Police 
D. Administration 

10. Mayor and Commissioner Comments 
11. Adjournment 

 

http://www.laurelpark.org/


 
 

TOWN OF LAUREL PARK 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Title of Item: Consent Agenda 
 
Presenter: Mayor J. Carey O’Cain 
 
Attachment(s):  Yes/No 
 

• Monthly Report 
• Arbor Day Proclamation 

 
Summary of Item: 
 
The monthly report is attached.  
 
 
Council Action Requested: 
 
Staff requests the Town Council review the consent agenda. 
 
Suggested Motion:  

 
Move to approve the consent agenda. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Planning & Zoning 
 
 
 
 
 

Status of Single-Family Residential Dwellings (SFRD) 
2021-19 212 Beechwood Jennifer Yost NC 
2022-1 312 Daniel Dr. Chris St. Onge NC 

2022-23 74 Indian Woods Trl. Jon Skillman CO 
2022-31 10 Fawn Turn Ln Sigfrid Della Valle NC 
2022-38 209 Ficker Cir. Sarah Adams NC 
2022-44 945 Somersby Pkwy. Matt Padula UC 
2023-4 200 Rowland Dr. Loyd Alexander LPZCP 
2023-5 PIN# 9548467175/Clays Cv. Josh Youngblood LPZCP 

2023-29 PIN# 9558252937 (9558262012) Chris Brock UC 

Status Legend 
LPZCP = Laurel Park Zoning Compliance Permit UC = Under Construction 
NC = Nearly Complete   CO=Certificate of Occupancy Issued 

 

Monthly Permits Other Than SFRD 
Deck  0 
Sign  0 
Fence 331 Orchard Cir. 1 
Additions or Remodel 541 Crystal Spring Dr., 124 Westwood Dr. 2 
Accessory Use or Structure 3398 Laurel Park Hwy. 1 

Total for January  4 

 



   March Monthly Report 
 

 

 

 

 

Tax Collector’s Report (February 29, 2024) 

For prior year taxes, a total of $29,226.73 remains outstanding. The Town received $6,646.106 
from Henderson County for property taxes collected for February and a total of $2,547,256.13 
since the 2023 bills were mailed. The 2023 tax levy is $2,571,273.46.  The Town currently has a 
collection rate of 99.256%.  

  



 

 

           Planning & Zoning  

_________________________________________________ 
 

 

 



PROCLAMATION 
ARBOR DAY 2024 

 
WHEREAS, In 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of 

Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, and 
 
WHEREAS, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of 

more than a million trees in Nebraska, and 
 
WHEREAS, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 
 
WHEREAS, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, 

cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce life-giving 
oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

 
WHEREAS, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel 

for our fires and countless other wood products, and 
 
WHEREAS, trees in our city increase property values, beautify our community, and 

enhance the economic vitality of business areas, and 
 
WHEREAS, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual 

renewal. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, J. Carey O’Cain, Mayor of the Town of Laurel Park, do 
hereby proclaim April 26, 2024 to be 
 

“ARBOR DAY” 
 
In Laurel Park, North Carolina, and I urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support 
efforts to protect our trees and woodlands, and 
 
FURTHER, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-being 
of this and future generations. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the 
Great Seal of the Town of Laurel Park, North Carolina, on this nineteenth day of March in the 
year of our Lord two thousand twenty-four. 
 

   J. Carey O’Cain, Mayor 
ATTEST:   

   

Tamara Amin, CMC, NCCMC   
Town Clerk/Deputy Tax 

Collector 
  

 



 
 

TOWN OF LAUREL PARK 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
 
Title of Item: ABC Merger Discussion 
 
 
Presenter: Town Manager Alex Carmichael 
 
Attachment(s):  Yes/No 

• ABC Merger Agreement 
• Suggested Amendments to the ABC Merger Agreement 

 
Summary of Item:  
The Town has been requested to consider merging the ABC Board with the Hendersonville 
ABC Board. The intent is to provide greater efficiencies and greater purchasing power. A 
draft merger agreement (attached) was put together by Chuck McGrady with input from the 
Hendersonville and Laurel Park ABC store managers.  
 
Commissioner Banta suggested the attached Amendments to be added to the contract. 
However, the Hendersonville City Council went ahead and voted to approve the agreement 
without the amendments.  
 
 
Council Action Requested:  
Review and discuss the ABC Board merger agreement and amendments. 
 
Suggested Motion:  
Move to approve ABC Board Merger Agreement as amended.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Suggested wording to be added to the current ABC draft of January 24, 2024: 

 12. Distribution of Profits: 

c. At the completion of the merger, all commercial accounts currently being serviced by the City or Town 
shall remain with their respective division.  New commercial accounts that are established within the 
City or Town limits will reside within that respective division.  New commercial accounts being 
established outside City or Town limits shall be credited to the nearest store and division.  

13. Location of ABC Stores: 

b. Profits derived from a newly created or relocated store and having a negative impact on either 
division shall be allocated proportionally to offset any loss in net profit to the affected store or division. 

 

 





















 
 

TOWN OF LAUREL PARK 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Title of Item: Centennial Committee Update 
 
 
Presenter: Mayor Pro Tem Paul Hansen and Commissioner Kristin Dunn 
 
Attachment(s):  Yes/No 
 
Summary of Item: Mayor Pro Tem Hansen and Commissioner Dunn will provide an update 
on the work and progress of the Centennial Committee. 
 
 
Council Action Requested:  
Discussion only. 
 
Suggested Motion:  
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TOWN OF LAUREL PARK 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Title of Item: Contract for New Payroll Software 
 
 
Presenter: Finance Officer Kirk Medlin 
 
Attachment(s):  Yes/No 

• Payroll Software Contract 
 
Summary of Item:  
Our accounting software provider (Edmunds GovTech) is ending support for their current 
payroll package. They are moving their customers to an in-house option called MCSJ. There 
is no way to continue with Edmunds without making this change. 
 
The costs will be as follows: 
 
• One-time fees of $8,000 are required for implementation and conversion. This cost 

will be split between FY 24 ($6,000) and FY 25 ($2,000). 
• Yearly fees of $6,800 are for the annual subscription, support, and hosting services. 

The entirety of this amount will be paid in FY 25. 
 
The net increase in our yearly fees will be $3,560. 
 
 
Council Action Requested:  
Review and discuss the contract with Edmunds GovTech. 
 
Suggested Motion:  
Move to approve the contract for the payroll software conversion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1

Investment Summary

Software Services - Subscription $3,800.00

Hosting Services $3,000.00

Professional Services - Implementation $3,000.00

Conversion Services $5,000.00

Year 1 Investment: $14,800.00

Summary Notes

One-time Implementation Fees: 50% will be due upon execution of the contract, 25% will be invoiced 60 days after the Effective Date and the 
remaining 25% will be invoiced upon the earlier of project acceptance or first production use. 

One-time Data Conversion Fees: 50% will be due upon execution of the contract, 25% will be invoiced 60 days after the Effective Date and the 
remaining 25% will be invoiced upon the earlier of project acceptance or first production use.

Hosting Services Fees: 100% will be invoiced on the Effective Date for the first annual term. Thereafter, 100% of each subsequent annual fee will be 
invoiced annually, 60 days prior to each anniversary of the Effective Date.

 Annual Subscription Fees: 100% will be invoiced upon execution of the contract for the first annual term. Thereafter, 100% of each subsequent 
annual fee will be invoiced annually, 60 days prior to the anniversary of the term date.

All invoices shall be paid within 30 days of the invoice date. Fees may increase annually with renewal terms subject to the National Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) or four percent (4%) of prior year's fees.

Software Services - Subscription Amount

Human Resources - 3 Year $1,900.00

Customer:  Laurel Park Sales Order

Customer Address: 441 White Pine Drive
Laurel Park, NC 28739 Order #: 00006943

Customer County: Henderson Sales Order Date: October 12, 2023

Customer Admin Contact: Kirk Medlin Effective Date: Date of customer signature below

Customer Admin Phone: (828) 693-4840 New/Add-On: Add-on Core

Customer Admin Email: finance@laurelpark.org Sales Rep: Shane Ireland



2

Software Services - Subscription Amount

Payroll - 3 Year $1,900.00

Annual Fees: $3,800.00

Hosting Services Amount

Hosting (Level I) $3,000.00

Annual Fees: $3,000.00

Professional Services - Implementation Amount

Standard Personnel Implementation I $3,000.00

One-Time Fees: $3,000.00

Conversion Services Amount

Human Resources- Advanced Conversion

- Employee Master Information

- Employee Profile History

- Salary, Position, Education History, etc.

- Employee ACA Benefit Information

- Employee Dependent Benefit Information

- Employee Benefit Time Transaction History for 3 years + current

$2,500.00

Payroll - Base Conversion

- Employee Master Information 

- Current Year Check History 

- Gross Pay 

- Detailed Deductions 

- Detailed Taxes 

- Net Pay 

- Leave Time Balances

$2,500.00

One-Time Fees: $5,000.00



3

Software Services - Subscription 
Notes

Initial term of the Software Services are a 36 month subscription, commencing 90 days after the Effective Date.

Thereafter, the Software Services subscription shall renew automatically for 12-month renewal terms unless written 
notice is provided by Customer at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the initial or then-current renewal Term. 
Fees may increase annually with renewal terms subject to the National Consumer Price Index (CPI) or four percent 
(4%) of prior year's fees.

  

Hosting Services Notes

The initial Hosting Services Term shall be 36 months commencing on the Effective Date.

The Hosting Services Terms shall renew automatically for 12-month renewal terms at then-current applicable Fees 
unless written notice is provided by Customer at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the initial or then-current 
renewal Term. Fees may increase annually with renewal terms subject to the National Consumer Price Index (CPI) or 
four percent (4%) of prior year's fees.

  

Professional Services - Notes Includes all standard implementations listed under "Professional Services - Implementation".
 

Professional Services - Notes Includes all standard implementations listed under "Professional Services - Implementation".
 

Sales Order Notes



4

Please return executed Sales Orders via
DocuSign or Email to:

Edmunds GovTech, Inc.
Email: SalesOrders@EdmundsGovTech.com

P: 888.336.6999 | F: 609.645.3111
www.EdmundsGovTech.com
Sales Order #: 00006943

 BY THE SIGNATURE BELOW, THE UNDERSIGNED CERTIFIES THAT S/HE IS AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE CUSTOMER AND EDMUNDS GOVTECH, AS 
APPLICABLE, AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE SERVICES DESCRIBED IN THIS SALES ORDER ARE GOVERNED BY THE EXISTING LICENSE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN CUSTOMER AND EDMUNDS GOVTECH, AS AMENDED HEREBY, WHICH ARE INCORPORATED BY THIS REFERENCE.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 
INTENDING TO BE LEGALLY BOUND, THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS SALES ORDER AS OF THE DATE WRITTEN ABOVE.

   EDMUNDS GOVTECH, INC. Laurel Park

     
By:          

                   \s1\    Date: \d1\ By: \s2\    Date: \d2\

Shane Ireland Kirk Medlin
Regional Sales Director Finance Officer

mailto:MelanieR@edmundsgovtech.com
http://www.edmundsgovtech.com/


 
 

TOWN OF LAUREL PARK 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
 
Title of Item: Laurel Park Highway Survey Results 
 
 
Presenter: Town Clerk Tamara Amin 
 
Attachment(s):  Yes/No 

• Survey Results 
 
Summary of Item:  
We received 78 responses to the Laurel Park Highway Survey. The following is a breakdown 
of the results: 

• 54% No change 
• 12% Laurel Park Trail 
• 12% Laurel Park Drive 
• 8% Laurel Park Way 
• 0% Laurel Park Parkway 
• 1% Echo Mountain Trail 
• 1% Concourse 
• 3% Depends on Costs  

 
 
Council Action Requested:  
Review and discuss survey results.  
 
Suggested Motion:  
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 






	Regular Meeting Agenda 3.19.24
	Regular Meeting Agenda 3.19.24
	Planning February 2024 Monthly Report
	February 2024 Monthly Report
	ARBOR DAY - 2024
	Regular Meeting Agenda 3.19.24
	ABC Contract Amendments
	ABC Merger Agreement
	Regular Meeting Agenda 3.19.24
	Laurel Park, NC-Logics Optimum to MCSJ PR, HR Hosted
	Regular Meeting Agenda 3.19.24
	Bar Chart
	Visual Display

